
Ron Sellers
District 1

Vice-Chair

Ron Hirst
District 2
Member

Daniel P. Friesen
District 3

Chair

Courthouse
206 W. 1st Avenue

Hutchinson, KS 67501

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer
  
3. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair
  
4. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda

Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5
minutes per item.

  
5. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda
  
6. Consent Agenda
 6.A Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units).
 6.B Drafted BOCC January 25th and February 8th, 2022 minutes 
 6.C Resolution to cancel certain county warrants from 2019
 6.D Audit/Financial Statement Services by Adams Brown, LLC (Updated engagement

letter)
 6.E Fiber Lease Agreement with IdeaTek to Reno County Landfill
 6.F Noxious Weed Annual Management Plan and Eradication Progress Report
 6.G Letter of Support for Strataca - Kansas Underground Salt Museum for their Tourism

Attraction Sub-Grant for Kansas (TASK) grant application.
 6.H Purchase of 5 New bull mobile Litter Fences at the Solid Waste Department from

Metta Technologies for $43,240
 6.I Declaration of local disaster from February 8, 2022 expiring February 15, 2022 due

to wildfires conditions
 6.J Extension of Declaration of local disaster from February 16, 2022 to February 23,

2022
  
7. Business Items
 7.A Yearly update from Emergency Management Director 
 7.B Raise in Reimbursement cost to house State Parole Violators.
 7.C Reno County Advisory Board/Committee Guidelines
  
8. County Administrator Report
 8.A Monthly Department Reports
  

REGULAR SESSION

 

A G E N D A
Reno County Annex Conference Room

125 W. 1st Avenue, Hutchinson
Tuesday, February 22, 2022, 9:00 AM



9. County Commission Report/Comments
  
10. Adjournment



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.B

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY:

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Drafted BOCC January 25th and February 8th, 2022 minutes 

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
none

ALL OPTIONS:
Approval

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approval by the Board

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
none

























AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.C

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: County Clerk Donna Patton

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Resolution to cancel certain county warrants from 2019

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
These certain warrants were against funds of the county treasury and a period of more than two years
has elapsed since the signing of those warrants.  A "draft" of resolution is attached and the actual
Resolution will be presented at the February 22nd Agenda meeting on Tuesday since the Clerk's Office
would be accepting calls from recipients up until February 21st to have checks reissued.  The warrants
to be canceled, and all balances accruing from unpaid canceled warrants will revert to the county fund
which such warrants were drawn.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve or deny resolution

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
The Board to approve the resolution to cancel warrants and not reissue them.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None



shonda.arpin
Draft



shonda.arpin
Draft



shonda.arpin
Draft



shonda.arpin
Draft



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.D

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Audit/Financial Statement Services by Adams Brown, LLC (Updated engagement letter)

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Commission approved a three-year engagement letter with Adams Brown, LLC on May 11, 2021,
covering auditing services for the financial years ending December 31, 2021,  2022 and 2023, at fees for
the primary audit services of $32,750 (2021), $33,850 (2022), and $34,950 (2023).   As the audit for
2020 had been priced at $34,400, the renewal for 2021-2023 audits was favorable.  The fee of $3,900
for each major grant program’s audit services under the Uniform Guidance Act was unchanged since
the prior three-year contract.  The major program fee is usually incurred on only one grant per year.
As of February 10, 2022, Adams Brown, LLC has submitted to us an updated engagement letter in
which they incorporated the AICPA’s Statement on Auditing Standards #134, which became effective
for financial statement years ending after December 15, 2021. There are no substantive changes in the
updated engagement letter as to the nature of the auditing services, Adams Brown’s responsibilities in
the conduct or reporting the results of the audit, or in such matters as Reno County’s responsibilities for
our own financial statements, for our system of internal controls, and to make all requested information
available to the auditors.  All fees for the three years 2021-2023 are the same in the updated letter as
they were in the letter approved in May 2021.
The audit for the year ended December 31, 2021 is underway, with the requested audit information,
including a draft of the financial statements, currently being prepared to provide to Adams Brown.
 Their onsite field work is scheduled to take place near the end of April.

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve the updated audit services engagement letter with Adams Brown, LLC and authorize the

County Administrator to sign it.
2. Decline to approve the updated audit services engagement letter with Adams Brown, LLC and

request that the agreement approved in May 2021 stay in force with existing wording.
3. Decline to approve the updated audit services engagement letter and go out to bid for such

services.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
It is staff’s recommendation to approve the updated three-year engagement letter with Adams Brown,
LLC and authorize the County Administrator to sign the letter, so that our agreement reflects the most
current auditing standards that are promulgated by the AICPA.



POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The cost for the 2021 audit, which is unchanged in this updated agreement, is paid from General Fund’s
2022 budget.



 

 

February 10, 2022 
 
 
 
To the County Commission 
Reno County, Kansas 
206 W 1st Ave 
Hutchinson, KS 67501 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Reno County, Kansas for 
the years ending December 31, 2021, 2022 and 2023. 
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 
 
We will audit the regulatory basis primary government financial statement and the disclosures, which 
collectively comprise the basic financial statement of Reno County, Kansas as of and for the years 
ending December 31, 2021, 2022 and 2023. 
 
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information that accompanies Reno County, 
Kansas’ financial statement. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statement and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statement or to the financial statement itself, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statement as a 
whole, in a report combined with our auditors’ report on the financial statement: 
 

 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 Summary of expenditures – actual and budget 
 Schedule of receipts and expenditures 
 Summary of receipts and disbursements 

 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statement as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion about whether your financial statement is fairly presented, all material respects, in 
conformity with the regulatory basis of accounting; and report on the fairness of the supplementary 
information referred to in the second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statement as 
a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial 
statement. The objectives also includes reporting on:  
 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the 
financial statement in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 
 



Reno County, Kansas 
Page 2 
February 10, 2022 
 
 

 

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of 
opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal 
awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the 
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide; 
the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the 
Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to 
express such an opinion. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statement, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statement represents 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is free of material 
misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or 
(4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by 
management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and 
abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific 
procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk 
that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In 
addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statement or on 
major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, any 
fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform 
the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to 
our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports required for a 
Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 
We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and 
financial institutions. We will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of the 
engagement. 
 
We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in 
serving your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but 



Reno County, Kansas 
Page 3 
February 10, 2022 
 
 

 

remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we 
maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal 
information. In addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain 
the confidentiality of your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have 
appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to 
others. In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be 
asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party 
service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party 
service providers. 
 
Audit Procedures – Internal Control 
 
We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant 
to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, 
whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and 
obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. 
Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant 
to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statement and to preventing 
and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statement. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than 
would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting 
material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. 
However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls 
and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the 
Uniform Guidance. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will 
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are 
required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and 
the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Audit Procedures – Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of Reno County, Kansas' compliance with provisions of applicable 
laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of 
those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an 
opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and 
other applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of Reno County, Kansas’ major 
programs. For federal programs that are included in the Compliance Supplement, our compliance and 
internal control procedures will relate to the compliance requirements that the Compliance Supplement 



Reno County, Kansas 
Page 4 
February 10, 2022 
 
 

 

identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on 
Reno County, Kansas' compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our 
report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Other Services 
 
We will also assist in preparing the financial statement, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and 
related notes of Reno County, Kansas in conformity with the regulatory basis of accounting and the 
Uniform Guidance based on information provided by you, as well as data collection form assistance. 
These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such 
services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the 
services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the 
financial statement, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and data collection 
form assistance services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgement, reserve the right to 
refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management 
responsibilities. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for (1) 
designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of a financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating and monitoring 
ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and 
regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are administered 
in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and financial information 
is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to 
achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also 
responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statement, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and all accompanying 
information in conformity with the regulatory basis of accounting; and for compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations (including federal statutes), rules, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements 
(including award agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor 
relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information. 
 
You are also responsible for making drafts of the financial statement, schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, all financial records, and related information available to us and for the accuracy and 
completeness of that information (including information from outside of the general and subsidiary 
ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are 
aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement, such as records, 
documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, and 
other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and other 
information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance; (3) additional information that we 
may request for the purpose of the audit; and (4) unrestricted access to persons within the government 
from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will 
require certain written representations from you about the financial statement; schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements; and related matters. 
 
 



Reno County, Kansas 
Page 5 
February 10, 2022 
 
 

 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statement to correct material misstatements and 
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statement taken as a 
whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) 
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statement. Your responsibilities include informing us of your 
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in 
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are 
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants. You are also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to 
remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to 
evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit 
findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. 
The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review. 
 
You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received, and COVID-19-related concepts, such as lost 
revenues, if applicable) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains and indicates that we have 
reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to include the audited 
financial statement with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that includes 
our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter 
that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (3) the methods 
of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have 
changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards. 
 
You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been 
engaged to report on, in conformity with the regulatory basis of accounting. You agree to include our 
report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have 
reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statement 
with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon. Your 
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are 
responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with the regulatory basis of 
accounting; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented in accordance with the regulatory basis of accounting; (3) the methods of measurement or 
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons 
for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations 
underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information. 



Reno County, Kansas 
Page 6 
February 10, 2022 
 
 

 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related 
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility 
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations 
resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or studies. You are also 
responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format 
for providing that information. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statement, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, related notes, data collection form assistance and any other nonaudit 
services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our 
assistance with preparation of the financial statement, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statement, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility 
for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services as noted above by designating an 
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the 
adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 
 
Electronic Data Communication and Storage and Use of Third-Party Service Provider 
 
In the interest of facilitating our services to your company, we may communicate by facsimile 
transmission, send data over the internet, store electronic data via computer software applications hosted 
locally on secure AdamsBrown, LLC servers or remotely on secure third-party cloud systems/applications, 
or allow access to data through third-party vendors’ secured hosted portal services. Electronic data that 
are confidential to your company may be transmitted or stored using these methods. We may use third-
party service providers to store or transmit these data, such as providers of tax return or audit preparation 
software. We also may use third parties within and outside of the United States to complete the services 
under this engagement letter. These third parties may in the performance of such services have access to 
your confidential information. 
 
In using these data communication and storage methods, our firm employs measures designed to 
maintain data security. We use reasonable efforts to keep such communications and data access secure 
in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws and professional standards. We also require all 
our third-party vendors to do the same, and they have represented to us that they have the technical and 
other safeguards in place to protect confidential information and from unauthorized disclosure or use of 
that information. 
 
You recognize and accept that we have no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any 
communications or data once it has been sent or has been subject to unauthorized access, 
notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us or our third-party vendors. You consent 
to our use of these electronic devices and applications and submission of confidential client information to 
third-party service providers during this engagement, both within and outside of the U.S. 
 
Non-Solicitation 
  
AdamsBrown, LLC has made a significant investment in the recruitment and training of its personnel. The 
loss of such personnel as a result of your actions would be detrimental to AdamsBrown, LLC’s current 
and future business success. During the term of this engagement, you shall not directly recruit or solicit to 
hire or otherwise engage the services of, audit personnel of AdamsBrown, LLC that work on this job. 



Reno County, Kansas 
Page 7 
February 10, 2022 
 
 

 

Likewise, AdamsBrown, LLC will not directly recruit or solicit to hire, or otherwise engage the services of, 
Reno County, Kansas personnel. 
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection 
Form that summarizes our audit findings. It is management's responsibility to electronically submit the 
reporting package (including the financial statement, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditors' reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data 
Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission 
and certification. The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted within the 
earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit 
period. 
 
We will provide copies of our reports to the County; however, management is responsible for distribution 
of the reports and the financial statement. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged 
and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of AdamsBrown, LLC and constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to your cognizant or 
oversight agency for audit or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the 
U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit 
findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, 
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of AdamsBrown, LLC 
personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the 
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information 
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report 
release date or for any additional period requested by your cognizant agency, oversight agency for audit, 
or pass-through entity. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is 
contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to 
destroying the audit documentation. 
 
Melissa A. Romme is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and 
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. Our fee for this service will not exceed 
$32,750 for 2021, $33,850 for 2022 and $34,950 for 2023, with an additional $3,900 per each major 
program under the Uniform Guidance Act. It is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and 
the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant 
additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur 
the additional costs. Our invoices for these fees may be rendered throughout the engagement as 
significant work is completed prior to delivery. 
 
We will not undertake any accounting services (including but not limited to reconciliation of accounts and 
preparation of requested schedules) without obtaining approval through a written change order or 
additional engagement letter for such additional work. 
 
 
 
 



Reno County, Kansas 
Page 8 
February 10, 2022 
 
 

 

Reporting 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Reno County, Kansas’ financial statement. 
Our report will be addressed to the commission of Reno County, Kansas. Circumstances may arise in 
which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. 
Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinion, add a 
separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditors’ report, or if 
necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinion is other than unmodified, we will discuss the 
reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form 
or have not formed opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or withdraw from this engagement. If 
circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate audit 
evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statement caused 
by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment 
prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial statement, we retain the right 
to take any course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an 
opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 
 
The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance 
and other matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of 
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will state that 
the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Reno County, Kansas and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If 
you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy 
and return it to us. 

 
ADAMSBROWN, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 
Hutchinson, Kansas 
 
 
RESPONSE: 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Reno County, Kansas. 
 
 
By:    _____________________________________ 
 
 
Title:  _____________________________________ 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.E

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY:

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Fiber Lease Agreement with IdeaTek to Reno County Landfill

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The attached fiber lease and maintenance agreement is necessary for the landfill to receive adequate
broadband service at the new scale house.  The county has been working with IdeaTek since April 2021
to agree on contract language for the fiber access.  The agreement was mutually satisfactory to both
parties in November 2021.  Reno County will lease the fiber for our use for a period of no less than 25-
years at a total cost of $95,000.  Our return on investment is estimated to be 8-years.  

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve lease and maintenance agreement.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve the Fiber Lease and Maintenance Agreement with IdeaTek, authorizing the county
administrator to sign.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
Solid Waste Fund has the funds to cover this expense in operating and/or bond costs for the construction
project.



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 

This Optical Fiber Lease and Maintenance Agreement (this “Agreement”), is made and entered 

into effective as of this day ___________________, 2021 (the “Effective Date”) between IdeaTek Telcom, 

LLC a Kansas limited liability, as Lessor (“IdeaTek”), and Reno County, Kansas, as Lessee (“Reno 

County”). 

 

WHEREAS, IdeaTek owns and operates a fiber optic communications networks in Reno County, 

Kansas, and is a provider of high-speed broadband internet services and a certificated telecommunications 

carrier; and 

 

WHEREAS, Reno County desires to lease from IdeaTek and IdeaTek is willing to lease to Reno 

County the optical fibers included in and part of IdeaTek’s Network as unused or “dark” optical fiber (the 

“Leased Fibers”) included in and part of IdeaTek’s Network as provided in this Agreement. 

 

WHEREAS, the lease of Reno County’s interest in the Leased Fibers included in IdeaTek’s 

Network by IdeaTek to Reno County, as provided in this Lease, is necessary, desirable, in the public interest 

and consistent with the permissible scope of IdeaTek's authority; and 

 

WHEREAS, Reno County has full power and authority to enter into the transactions contemplated 

by this Lease and has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease by proper action by Reno 

County’s governing body at a meeting duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by the 

requisite number of the members thereof or by other official approval.  This Lease is a valid, legal and 

binding obligation of Reno County, enforceable in accordance with its terms except as enforceability may 

be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws and equitable principles 

affecting creditor's rights generally, 

 

TERMS 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good 

and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:  

 

1. LEASE OF LEASED FIBERS 

 

1.1. IdeaTek agrees to lease to Reno County, and Reno County agrees to lease from IdeaTek, 

for the Term specified below a minimum of four (4) dark fiber strands which are part of 

IdeaTek’s Network with the endpoints at the Reno County Courthouse and the Reno 

County Landfill as more particularly described in Exhibit A (the “Leased Fibers”). 

 

1.2. The Leased Fibers are part of a fiber optic cable route which contains other fibers expressly 

not included in the Leased Fibers.  The fiber optic cable utilized to convey the Leased 

Fibers shall be referred to as the “Underlying Cable” in this Agreement. 

 

1.3. Reno County may use the Leased Fibers for any lawful purpose so long as such use does 

not interfere with IdeaTek’s use of the Network for IdeaTek’s own purposes except that 

Reno County may not lease such fibers to a third party for purposes which may compete 

with IdeaTek. 

 



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 2 of 8 

 

 

1.4. Reno County agrees to that this lease does not convey legal ownership of any of IdeaTek’s 

real or personal property, including the Leased Fibers. 

 

1.5. During this lease, IdeaTek shall have no right to use the Leased Fibers or allow third-parties 

use of the Leased Fiber unless authorized by Reno County. 

 

2. COMPENSATION  

 

2.1. For the exclusive use of the Leased Fibers during the Term, Reno County agrees to pay to 

IdeaTek a one-time payment in the amount ninety-five thousand dollars $95,000.00. Such 

payment shall be made no more than thirty (30) days following Reno County’s receipt of 

an invoice from IdeaTek. Said invoice to be sent no earlier than the Commencement Date. 

 

3. LEASE TERM  

 

3.1. This Lease is an exclusive, dedicated, and continuing lease and referred to herein as the 

Term of this Agreement.   

 

3.2. The Lease term shall commence at an agreed upon date set by the Parties in a memorandum 

attached to the Agreement (“Commencement Date”) 

 

3.3. The Term shall terminate at the end of the Useful Life of the Lease Fibers.  For purposes 

of this agreement, (“Useful Life”) shall mean at least 25 years but no more than the period 

of time the Underlying Cable is useful to IdeaTek for its purposes. 

 

3.4. After a period of 25 years, IdeaTek may provide written notice of termination of this 

agreement in the event the Leased Fibers have concluded their Useful Life.  At such time, 

IdeaTek will provide the commercially reasonable factors in determining that the 

Underlying Cable is no longer useable, repairable, maintainable, or other such reasons for 

such a decision. 

 

4. RIGHT TO CURE AND TERMINATION 

 

4.1 This Agreement may only be terminated by a) written mutual agreement by the Parties; b) 

upon either Party’s failure to comply any material term of this Agreement and subsequent 

failure to cure; or c) if expressly permitted pursuant to other provisions in this Agreement. 

 

4.2 Should either Party fail to comply with any material term of this Agreement, the non-

breaching Party shall provide the breaching Party with a written “Notice to Cure” which 

shall state the manner in which the Party has failed to comply with the Agreement. The 

Party receiving the notice shall then have 10 days following receipt to cure any defects or 

non-compliance. In the event said breach is not cured within that time period, the non-

breaching may terminate this Agreement immediately by delivery of written notice to the 

other. 

 

4.3 In the event IdeaTek fails to comply with any material term of this Agreement and fails to 



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 

cure pursuant to Section 4.2, Reno County may be entitled to terminate this Agreement 

and recover damages limited to the amount of a pro rata share of compensation calculated 

as follows:  

 

(Percentage of years left from default date to 25 years) x ($95,000.00) 

 

4.4 In the event Reno County fails to comply with any material term of this Agreement and 

fails to cure pursuant to Section 4.2, IdeaTek may terminate this Agreement pursuant to 

Section 4.2 without penalty and Reno County shall not be entitled to recover any 

compensation. 

 

5. MAINTENANCE OF LEASED FIBERS.  

 

5.1 IdeaTek shall at all times ensure the Leased Fibers and Underlying Cable are constantly 

protected from damage, are properly located under K.S.A. 66-1802, shall enforce all 

associated material warranties granted to the component parts of the Leased Fibers for the 

benefit of Reno County, and maintain the Leased Fibers and Underlying Cable in a 

commercially reasonable manner and to standards equal to or greater care that IdeaTek 

affords to the IdeaTek Network.  

 

5.2 For the proper protection of IdeaTek’s Network and its operations by both parties, it is 

agreed that IdeaTek shall have the exclusive authority for the maintenance of the Network 

and at no time will Reno County attempt to perform or permit maintenance either by itself 

or by a third party except as otherwise provided in this Agreement. 

 

5.3 Except for emergencies, IdeaTek will coordinate any maintenance that may cause an 

outage to the Network by providing at least five business days advance notice to Reno 

County and when possible, scheduling required maintenance at times outside of Reno 

County’s normal operating hours. 

 

5.4 Unless expressly obligated otherwise, IdeaTek shall have no obligation to maintain any of 

Reno County’s equipment for connections or operation of the Leased Fibers. 

 

5.5 Upon any outage, damage, or maintenance required involving the Leased Fibers, Reno 

County shall promptly notify IdeaTek of the need for repair. IdeaTek will use all industry-

standard reasonable efforts to repair the Leased Fibers within an average of four (4) hours 

from when IdeaTek is notified of said outage by Reno County. The maintenance and repairs 

shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner. In the event IdeaTek is unable to 

complete the work in a timely manner, it will promptly notify Reno County and keep it 

apprised of the repair status. 

 

5.6 If IdeaTek fails to maintain the Leased Fibers or Underlying Cable as described herein and 

fails to cure upon proper notice as set forth in Section 4, Reno County shall be entitled to 

either a) maintain the Leased Fibers or Underlying Cable itself and charge the expenses in 

doing so to IdeaTek, or b) seek damages in Reno County District Court subject to the 

limitation that the damages be limited to a prorated amount of the lease term remaining 

calculated as follows:  



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 

 

(Percentage of years left from default date to 25 years) x (Compensation) 

 

5.7 If IdeaTek determines in its reasonable business judgment or is required by a third party 

with legal authority to do so, to relocate all or any portion of the Underlying Cable or 

perform any other non-routine substantial maintenance, IdeaTek shall provide Reno 

County thirty (30) Days’ prior written notice of any such non-routine maintenance, if 

possible, and shall proceed with such work. IdeaTek shall have the right to direct such 

maintenance, including the right to determine the extent of, the timing of, and methods to 

be used for such relocation, provided that any such maintenance: 

 

(a) shall be constructed and tested in accordance with then-current Industry 

Standards; 

 

(b) shall not result in an adverse change to the operation or performance of the 

Leased Fiber; and 

 

(c) shall not unreasonably interrupt the Leased Fibers. 

 

IdeaTek shall utilize commercially reasonable efforts, in coordination and cooperation with 

Reno County, to accomplish the relocation. 

 

5.8 In the event of a required relocation or other non-routine substantial maintenance of the 

Underlying Cable, and such relocation and maintenance is not at the request of Reno 

County, Reno County agrees to reimburse IdeaTek for the actual documented and itemized 

costs associated with the maintenance in a pro rata share to the number Leased Fibers.  For 

example, if the utilized fibers in Underlying Cable contains is 40:  

 

Leased Fibers (4) \ 40 = 10%, Reno County would be responsible for 10% of the actual 

costs associated with the maintenance, but in no event shall the costs for which Reno 

County would be responsible exceed $9,500.00  

 

In the event a required relocation or other non-routine substantial maintenance of the 

Underlying Cable is at the request of Reno County, Reno County shall be responsible for 

any actual documented and itemized costs of said relocation or maintenance. 

 

6.  OBSOLESCENCE AND EARLY CABLE FAILURE.   

 

6.1 Due to the extended length of term of this Agreement, Reno County understands and 

acknowledges it is impossible to predict certain conditions and events beyond IdeaTek’s 

control which may render the Leased Fibers unusable, unreliable, or in need of repair 

(hereafter, “Early Cable Failure”). 

 

(a) In the event the Early Cable Failure occurs within seven (7) years 

following the commencement date, the failure is not a result of any acts or 

omissions on part of Reno County, and the Parties cannot in good faith agree to 

replacement options, either Party may elect to terminate the Agreement and 



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 

IdeaTek shall refund Reno County a pro-rata share of its compensation calculated 

as follows: 

 
       (Percentage of years left from default date to 25 years) x (Compensation) 

 

(b) In the event the Early Cable Failure is either caused by Reno County or 

occurs more than seven (7) years from the Commencement Date, and it is 

determined the failure is of no fault to IdeaTek, the parties may either agree in 

good faith to replacement options and costs or terminate this Agreement without 

penalty or any recourse by way of damages or otherwise. 

 

7. TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP 

 

7.1 IdeaTek shall be permitted to assign this agreement to a successor provided such successor 

agrees to assume all obligations contained in this Agreement and provides notice to Reno 

County of said transfer. 

 

8. QUIET ENJOYMENT   

 

8.1 So long as Reno County is not in default under this Agreement, Reno County shall quietly 

have, hold, and enjoy the Leased Fibers for the entire Term set forth in this Agreement, 

free of any claims, interference, hindrances, or other actions by IdeaTek or any third-party 

claiming by, through, or under IdeaTek, unless subject to any provisions otherwise 

contained in this Agreement. 

 

8.2 So long as IdeaTek is not in default under this Agreement, IdeaTek shall quietly, have, 

hold, and enjoy any other fiber optic strands and/or Network contained in the cable to which 

the Leased Fibers are contained for the entire Term set forth in this Agreement, free of any 

claims, interference, hindrances, or other actions by Reno County or any third-party 

claiming by, through, or under Reno County, unless subject to any provisions otherwise 

contained in this Agreement.  

 

9. LIMITATION OF WARRANTY. Except as specifically set forth herein, IdeaTek makes no 

representation or warranty, either express or implied, arising by law or otherwise, including, but 

not limited to, implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

 

10. FORCE MAJEURE.  Each and every provision hereof shall be reasonably subject to acts of God, 

fires, strikes, riots, floods, war and other disasters beyond Reno County's or IdeaTek’s control 

(“Force Majeure Event”).  

 

(a) Should the Leased Fiber be damaged or destroyed due to a Force Majeure Event 

and it is determined by the Parties good faith discretion that the Fibers cannot be 

repaired or replaced, the Parties agree that it shall be treated as an Early Cable 

Failure and subject to the same rights pursuant to Section 6.1(a) of this Agreement. 

 

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, a Force Majeure Event does not include any 

damage or destruction caused by the actions or omissions of either Party. 

 



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 

11. NOTICES.   Notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been given when delivered in person or sent by registered or 

certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by a nationally recognized overnight 

delivery service, and addressed to the Parties at their addresses stated above, or to such other 

address(es) as a party may from time to time designate by notice to the other Parties.  

 
IdeaTek: 
IdeaTek Telcom, LLC 
Attn: Legal Notice 
111 Old Mill Lane 
Buhler, KS 67522-0407 
legal@ideatek.com 

Reno County: 
Reno County 

ATTN: Randy Partington 

206 W 1st Avenue 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

 

 

12. SEVERABILITY; WAIVERS. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. 

Unless in writing and signed by both Parties, no waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement 

shall constitute a waiver of any other provision, nor shall any waiver as to one event constitute a 

waiver as to any other event. Additionally, Buyer’s failure to strictly enforce any provision of this 

agreement does not constitute a waiver either in part or to the whole of the agreement. 

 

13. AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement executed by an 

authorized representative of each party. 

 

14. GOVERNING LAW This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Kansas.  Any 

action filed regarding this Agreement will be filed only in the Kansas District Court in Reno 

County, Kansas. 

 

15. RENO COUNTY CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS ATTACHMENT. The Provisions found 

in the Reno County Contractual Provisions Attachment, which is attached hereto, are hereby 

incorporated in the Contract and made a part hereof.  

 

In Witness Whereof, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 

IDEATEK TELCOM, LLC 

(“IdeaTek”) 

 

 

By:  ______________________ 

 Jerrod Reimer, CEO 

 

RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

(“Reno County”) 

 

By: ______________________ 

            Randy Partington 

            Reno County Administrator 

  



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

Endpoint: A Location 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
RENO COUNTY/IDEATEK 

OPTICAL FIBER LEASE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 

EXHIBIT A (Continued) 

 

 

Endpoint: Z Location 

 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.F

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Don Brittain, Public Works Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Noxious Weed Annual Management Plan and Eradication Progress Report

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Annual Noxious Weed Management Plan and Eradication Progress Report are required by State
Statute to be submitted to the Kansas Department of Agriculture every year to confirm Reno County's
commitment to controlling noxious weeds and to report the number of acres of noxious weeds treated.
 
The goals and priorities of the program for the coming year and the next five (5) years sections of the
Management Plan are tools used to provide the services.
 
The Noxious Weed Division of Public Works provides the services as listed in the list of methods
Public Works plans to use to encourage compliance section paid for by the Noxious Weed Fund
specifically levied for that purpose.
 
This process is repeated every year.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approval and signature of both plan and progress report.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approval and signature of both plan and progress report.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

















AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.G

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY:

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Letter of Support for Strataca - Kansas Underground Salt Museum for their Tourism Attraction Sub-
Grant for Kansas (TASK) grant application.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Strataca: Kansas Underground Salt Museum ("Strataca") is applying for a TASK grant and has asked
the commission to submit a letter of support.  Strataca will use the grant funds to improve the museum
by bringing in new interactive exhibits.  Strataca has asked for the Letter of Support to be signed and
submitted to them by March 1, 2022.

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Sign the letter of support.
2. Send the item back to staff for changes and since the BOCC's next meeting is after March 1st,

authorize the chairman to sign the revised letter.
3. Decline submitting a letter of support.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Sign Letter of Support

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
There are no policy or fiscal impacts



COMMISSION 
 

Ron Sellers 

District 1 

Vice-Chair 

Ron Hirst 

District 2 

Member 

Daniel P. Friesen 

District 3 

Chair 

Courthouse 

206 W. 1st Avenue 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

 

 

 

February 22, 2022 

 

 

Taylor Hartshorn   

TASK Grant Committee 

1000 SW Jackson, Suite 100 

Topeka, KS 66612 

 

Dear Taylor Hartshorn: 

 

The Reno County Board of Commissioners would like to express our support for the TASK Grant application 

by Strataca: Kansas Underground Salt Museum (“Strataca”).  The TASK Grant will assist Strataca by bringing 

in new and exciting interactive exhibits to improve the museum and thus bringing in more tourism.  

 

Currently, 90% of all visitors to Strataca come from outside Hutchinson, KS and 45% of all visitors are tourists 

from outside the State of Kansas.  In 2021, Strataca was awarded the TripAdvisor Travelers Choice Award 

for being in the top 10% of attractions worldwide and is deemed one of the eight (8) wonders of Kansas.   

 

The TASK Grant would be a great benefit in providing funds for the continuation of improving the museum 

and drawing in more tourism for our city, county, and state.  The Reno County Commissioners thank you in 

advance for your consideration of their TASK Grant application. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

       

Daniel P. Friesen 

 

 

 

       

Ron Sellers 

 

 

 

       

Ron Hirst 















AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.H

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Megan Davidson

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Purchase of 5 New bull mobile Litter Fences at the Solid Waste Department from Metta Technologies
for $43,240

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Reno County Solid Waste is in need of new mobile litter fences. We purchased the last wind fences
well over 10 years ago. The Bull mobile wind fences with canopies are 24ft in length and are 15ft. tall.
They have a depth of 8ft that has the capability to extend out to 15ft. in depth for trash to be trapped
inside the fence. These mobile fences can be moved around with landfill equipment easily and on a
daily basis if needed. The wind fence comes with a 5 year warranty. These mobile wind fences will be
placed by the Municipal Solid Waste (pit) area to capture blowing trash on especially windy days. Other
landfills around the area also use the same wind fences and gave great reviews of the product and have
been pleased with them.  *Quotes are only good for 30 days* due to steel fluctuations.

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Purchase 5 Bull mobile litter fences in the amount of $43,240.00 from Metta Technologies with a 5
year warranty.
2. Purchase 5 Mobile Wind Amor mobile litter fences in the amount of $46,240.00 from Southwestern
Sales Co. with a 3 year warranty.
3. Delay the purchase of the 5 mobile wind fences and discuss the item further.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Purchase 5 new  Bull Mobile Litter Fences from Metta Technologies

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The wind fences would come out of the capital outlay building and fixed equipment line item in the
Solid Waste operating budget 008 and would have no negative impact on the overall operating budget.



















AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.I

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY:

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Declaration of local disaster from February 8, 2022 expiring February 15, 2022 due to wildfires
conditions

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
A large wildfire started near 30th and Buhler/Haven road and quickly moved to the south.  Several
homes were evacuated and Chairman Friesen verbally approved a disaster declaration which granted
access to state resources.  The water tanker airplane, Tanker 95 was successfully used to slow the
spread of the wildfire.  Throughout the fire there were no homes damaged. 

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None



PROCLAMATION of a State of Local Disaster Emergency for Reno County, Kansas:

WHEREAS on the 8th Day of February 2022 the Board of Commissioners of Reno 
County, Kansas finds that certain wildfire weather conditions eminently threaten to cause severe 
damage, injury or loss of life or property in disaster proportion in Reno County, Kansas

WHEREAS such conditions have created obstructions which endanger health, safety 
and welfare of persons and property within the border of Reno County, Kansas

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas:

That the Board of County Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas, under and by virtue 
of the authority vested in it by K.S.A. 1976 Supp. 48-932, does hereby PROCLAIM that a State 
of Local Disaster Emergency exists.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that the area within the 
border of Reno County, Kansas covered by this proclamation/resolution is within Reno County, 
Kansas.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said Board has all rights and /or powers to 
perform such functions as are vested in said Board by and through the provisions of all Kansas 
Emergency Preparedness Act of 1975.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that this resolution shall remain 
in effect for a period of seven (7) days unless terminated earlier or renewed by consent of the 
governing body.

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF RENO COUNTY COMMISSIONERS THIS 8th day 
of February 2022

________________________________________
Daniel Friesen
Chairperson

_________________________________________
Ron Sellers
Member

_________________________________________
Ron Hirst
Member

Attest:

________________________
Donna Patton, County Clerk



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.J

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Adam Weishaar

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Extension of Declaration of local disaster from February 16, 2022 to February 23, 2022

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Several wildfires started on 2/15/2022.  Fire crews are still on site on 2/16/2022 and with an expected
wind shift, state resources may be needed again to mitigate the damage to property.  This was verbally
approved by Chairman Friesen on 2/15/2022.

ALL OPTIONS:
A

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve local disaster declaration 

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None



PROCLAMATION of a State of Local Disaster Emergency for Reno County, Kansas:

WHEREAS on the 8th Day of February 2022 the Board of Commissioners of Reno 
County, Kansas finds that certain wildfire weather conditions eminently threaten to cause severe 
damage, injury or loss of life or property in disaster proportion in Reno County, Kansas

WHEREAS such conditions remain unabated and are anticipated to continue to create 
obstructions which endanger health, safety and welfare of persons and property within the border 
of Reno County, Kansas

WHEREAS this Board of County Commissioners determines it necessary to extend 
said proclamation until February 23, 2022.

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas:

That the Board of County Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas, under and by virtue 
of the authority vested in it by K.S.A. 1976 Supp. 48-932, does hereby PROCLAIM that a State 
of Local Disaster Emergency exists.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that the area within the 
border of Reno County, Kansas covered by this proclamation/resolution is within Reno County, 
Kansas.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said Board has all rights and /or powers to 
perform such functions as are vested in said Board by and through the provisions of all Kansas 
Emergency Preparedness Act of 1975.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that this resolution shall remain 
in effect for a period of seven (7) days unless terminated earlier or renewed by consent of the 
governing body.

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF RENO COUNTY COMMISSIONERS THIS 16th day 
of February 2022

________________________________________
Daniel Friesen
Chairperson

_________________________________________
Ron Sellers
Member

_________________________________________
Ron Hirst
Member

Attest:

________________________



Donna Patton, County Clerk



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.A

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Adam Weishaar

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Yearly update from Emergency Management Director 

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
None

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None



Emergency Management Reno County
206 W 1st Ave
Hutchinson, KS 67501
620-694-2974

Mission:

Our mission is to provide the leadership and support to save lives and protect property from all types of 
hazards through a comprehensive, risk-based, all hazards integrated emergency management program of 
mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery.

What is Emergency Management?

Emergency Management exists because hazards and vulnerabilities exist everywhere in our community.  
It is the job of Emergency Management to coordinate and preplan with response agencies and private 
organizations on how we are going to mitigate against, prepare for, respond to, and recover from different 
hazards.  

Emergency Management is responsible for the coordination of all components of the emergency 
management system.  Emergency Management is the county’s liaison with local, regional, State and 
Federal government agencies as well as volunteer and private sectors on any and all activities that include 
mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery issues that may affect the local jurisdiction and its 
citizens. 

History of Emergency Management

Emergency Management is a concept that arose and evolved from the Civil Defense Act of 1950.  The 
term “civil defense” means all those activities and measures undertaken to:

1. Minimize the effects upon civilian population caused, or which would be caused, by 
an attack upon the United states, or by natural disaster

2. Deal with the immediate emergency conditions which would be created by such an 
attack or natural disaster

3. To effectuate emergency repair, or the emergency restoration of, vital utilities and 
facilities destroyed or damaged by an attack or natural disaster

Effective April 11, 1975 the Kansas Legislature approved K.S.A. Chapter 48, Article 9 which was the 
Emergency Preparedness for Disasters Act.  These statutes establish the need for emergency planning and 
set the responsibility for this at both the State and local levels.

In 1983 the Reno County Office of Civil Defense was renamed the Office of Emergency Preparedness 
(Resolution 83-30). 

In 1993 the establishment of the Office of Emergency Preparedness of Reno County is reaffirmed 
(Resolution 93-65).



Emergency Management Reno County
206 W 1st Ave
Hutchinson, KS 67501
620-694-2974

Effective January 3, 1994, the Kansas Legislature approved K.A.R. 56-2-2.  This sets the minimum 
standards for local disaster agencies in so far as establishing the agency, defining the duties of the 
Emergency Manager to the jurisdiction and, in return, establishes the minimum limits of support the 
jurisdiction should provide to the Emergency Manager.

In 1994 the Reno County Office of Emergency Preparedness is re-designated as the Reno County Office 
of Emergency Management (Resolution 94-37).

Today, the Emergency Management office operates with the Director, Specialist, and administrative 
assistant.

Four Phases of Emergency Management:

There are four phases of Emergency Management as outlined in the National Incident Management 
System (NIMS).  They are:

1. Mitigation
2. Preparedness
3. Response
4. Recovery

It is important that we work through these four phases in all of the plans we develop, procedures that take 
place, exercises we participate/facilitate, and the training we provide.

Mitigation:  Identifying hazards and vulnerabilities and then undertaking those activities that will help to 
eliminate, reduce the chance of occurrence, or reduce the effects of a disaster.

Preparedness:  Planning how to respond to various hazards/emergency scenarios.  Training and 
equipping responders so that they have the resources needed to respond to any type of incident.  
Exercising the various plans so that we know if they will work or not.  Educating the public about the 
hazards they face in the community and know how they can prepare themselves and their families. 

Response:  This takes place during and immediately after an emergency or disaster.  Actions are taken to
provide emergency assistance to victims i.e. Fire/EMS/Law Enforcement for public safety, debris 
clearance to allow access to the area by other responders, and shelters for people whose homes were 
damaged or destroyed.  Another part of response is taking actions to reduce further damage i.e. putting 
out fires, stopping gas or chemical leaks, sandbagging, and conducting search and rescue operations.  In 
past year, Public Works has assisted multiple times with blocking roads and assisted with heavy 
equipment during wildfires.



Emergency Management Reno County
206 W 1st Ave
Hutchinson, KS 67501
620-694-2974

Recovery:  This phase is trying to get the community back to a sense of “normalcy” as quickly as 
possible.  There are two types of recovery –

1. Short Term – actions that are taken to restore vital life-support systems to minimal 
operating conditions – i.e. restore power, clearing of roadways, etc.

2. Long Term – actions taken to try to return the community to “normal”, or to make it 
more “disaster resistant” - i.e. debris removal, rebuilding and/or restoration of 
damaged properties, Federal assistance to victims.

Operational Plans & Standard Operating Guidelines 

Emergency Managers should be prepared to assist department heads in the development and maintenance 
of operational plans.  Emergency Managers should also assist local industries in the development of 
emergency plans and capabilities in support of the local government plan.  The local Emergency Manager 
is responsible, along with their many partners, for the maintenance and revision of the Local Emergency 
Operations Plan (LEOP), which is required by state statute.  The LEOP is required to be revised and 
updated every five years; this update was due in December of 2021.  Due to the current workload and a 
change in formatting requirements, the LEOP is now expired.  This does not have any negative impacts 
on disaster funding, but EM will be working to update this plan.

Coordination of Resources 

When disaster strikes, Emergency Management must ensure that all governmental, volunteer and private 
agencies are functioning according to plan, have the resources necessary to do the job and most 
importantly, are working as a team.  This is coordination, not command.  Each agency has the authority 
and responsibility to do what needs to be done as only it can.  Emergency Management simply attempts to 
“pull together” everything that is going on in the response effort.  The Director advises the chief elected 
officials on disaster matters and ensures that the proper disaster declarations are made.  Emergency 
Management is the recognized point of contact for securing the help of outside entities such as the State 
and Federal Emergency Management Agency.

To do this affectively resource lists need to be updated and added to.  This is an ongoing endeavor year-
round.  NIMS requires that resource “typing” be done which involves categorizing resources by capability 
based on measurable standards of capability and performance.  Once this resource is received it should be 
tracked where it is going and if there is a cost associated with it.  If there is, what is the cost per hour, day, 
etc.? 



Emergency Management Reno County
206 W 1st Ave
Hutchinson, KS 67501
620-694-2974

The Local Emergency Manager is responsible for creating a local disaster declaration which will be sent 
to the Board of County Commissioners to declare.  Once a disaster declaration is in place, Reno County is 
responsible for the first $253,781.80 in damages before we will receive public assistance.  This number is 
based on $4.09 per capita (2021 was $3.78 per capita).  The state is currently using the 2020 census of 
61,898 residents in Reno County.  Public Assistance can refund eligible: debris removal, emergency 
protective measures, repair, restoration, reconstruction, or replacement of a public facility or 
infrastructure which is damaged or destroyed by a disaster.  The State of Kansas is responsible for 
$4,788,744.40 before receiving any federal assistance.  If a county and the State both reach their threshold 
on a single incident, the State of Kansas may request a presidential disaster.  If that presidential disaster is 
approved and declared, the government may reimburse up to 75% of the eligible expenses and the county 
will have to cover the other 25%.  The last for Reno County was flooding in 2019.  

Eligible cost of materials, equipment and supplies will be reimbursed using the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) current equipment rates established for the Public Assistance Program 
and/or actual costs.  

Reno County has received assistance from the state in recent years in the form of personal protective 
equipment, and assistance with fire suppression during large wildfires.  With an active disaster declaration 
in place, Reno County was able to utilize those state resources without utilizing any local funding.

In 2021 and early into 2022, the flooding reimbursements from 2019, disaster DR 4449 were obligated.  
Public Works put a lot of effort and time into working with the Program Managers to receive this 
reimbursement. Below is a summary of what was received:

2019 DR 4449 Cat A Debris Removal: total cost $34,424.92; federal share $25,818.69; non-federal share 
$8806.23; federal share obligated   6 /11/ 2021

2019 DR 4449 Cat B Protective Measures; total cost $20.493.53; federal share $15,370.15; non-federal 
share $5123.38; federal share obligated  6 /11/ 2021

2019 DR 4449 Cat C Road and Bridges; total cost $324.530.74; federal share $243,530.74; non-federal 
share $ 81,132.68; federal share obligated 1/11/2022

2019 DR 4449 Cat Z Management Cost; total cost $1119.73; federal share $1,119.73                                 
federal share obligated 1/26/2022  

Liaison

In this role, the Emergency Manager is the first line of contact with the State during times of crisis.  The 
Emergency Manager is charged with requesting additional resources at the State level based upon the 



Emergency Management Reno County
206 W 1st Ave
Hutchinson, KS 67501
620-694-2974

situation.  The local Emergency Manager is the liaison among local entities and the Federal government 
during Presidential-declared disasters.  

Advisor

The Emergency Manager is expected to be the Chief of Staff to the local officials before, during and 
following disaster emergencies.  In this role, they bring awareness of potential as well as existing 
problems and suggests solutions based on the needs of a community and available resources.  During 
times of crisis, the Emergency Manager keeps local officials apprised of situations in order for them to 
make the best decisions possible for response and recovery issues. These issues are then communicated to 
the response agencies based on the priorities set between the elected officials and the response 
community. 

Public Education

In order to inform the public of emergency management activities as well as teach the public how to take 
care of themselves during disaster emergencies, it is the responsibility of the local Emergency Manager to 
participate in a variety of methods for training.  These methods can include developing new programs, 
utilizing existing programs, and even handing out literature at public events.  It is important that the 
public be aware of the power they possess to take personnel responsibility for themselves first before a 
greater response is needed. 

Emergency Operations Center (EOC)

The Emergency Manager is responsible for developing, maintaining, and/or improving the EOC.  Our 
EOC is in the basement of the Law Enforcement Center and will serve as the seat of government during 
times of disaster/emergencies.  It facilitates continuity of government during times of crisis and must be 
kept at a state of readiness at all times.  

The following are possible criteria for activation of the Reno County Emergency Operations Center:

1. A threat (or potential threat) increases the risk in Reno County
2. Coordination of response activities are needed
3. Resource coordination is needed to respond to an event
4. Conditions are uncertain or could possibly escalate
5. A County emergency/disaster declaration is made
6. At the discretion of any of the individuals authorized to activate the EOC

The Reno County Emergency Operations Center may be activated or deactivated by the Emergency 
Management Director or any of the following individuals:

 Specialist - Reno County Emergency Management



Emergency Management Reno County
206 W 1st Ave
Hutchinson, KS 67501
620-694-2974

 Sheriff - Reno County Sheriff's Department

The Reno County Emergency Operations Center utilizes 3 levels of activation:

 Watch: When conditions indicate an event/disaster is imminent. Notification will be made to 
those agencies that will need to take action as part of their normal responsibilities. The Reno 
County Emergency Operations Center will be staffed by emergency management personnel.

 Partial-Activation: When conditions indicate an event/disaster is very imminent or has occurred. 
Emergency management personnel and essential ESFs are represented in the Reno County 
Emergency Operations Center.

 Full-Scale Activation: Any disaster/emergency that will require large-scale mutual aid and 
possible State and Federal assistance in response and recovery. Emergency management 
personnel and essential ESFs are represented in the Reno County Emergency Operations Center.

The facility serves as the coordination, command and control center for Reno County, is staffed when the 
need arises, and serves as the 24 hour Reno County Warning Point for initial notification and warning of 
emergencies and disasters.

During activation, the Reno County Emergency Operations Center provides the core emergency function 
coordination, communication, resource dispatch and tracking; information collection, analysis and 
dissemination; multi-agency coordination and joint information coordination. Field Operations will be 
managed through the Incident Command System (ICS).

Due to the current size constraints of the county Emergency Operations Center, all moderate and large-
scale events are organized at the Hutchinson Fire Command and Training Center.

Annual Budget

Emergency Management is responsible for preparing, submitting, and justifying the annual Emergency 
Management budget.  They are also intimately involved in the budgeting process for the eight county fire 
districts.

Community Emergency Response Team (CERT)

CERT programs educate people about disaster preparedness for hazards that may impact their area and 
trains them in basic disaster response skills, such as fire safety, light search and rescue, team organization, 
and disaster medical operations.  Using the training learned in the classroom and during exercises, these 
members can assist others in their neighborhood or workplace following an event when professional 
responders are not immediately available to help.  These members also are encouraged to support 
emergency response agencies by taking a more active role in emergency preparedness projects in their 



Emergency Management Reno County
206 W 1st Ave
Hutchinson, KS 67501
620-694-2974

community. They are also encouraged to take other trainings offered by such agencies as the American 
Red Cross to enhance their abilities. 

CERT can also assist with local events, help with parking issues, and direct traffic, etc. These groups 
require periodic training and exercising to keep up on their skills.  Some of the training would be done by 
departments that have the skills in that area.  The coordination of the training, etc. would need to be done 
by Emergency Management.  Records of training and volunteered time are also maintained. 

CERT was utilized in 2021 for personal protective equipment distribution, vaccination sites, and during 
wildfires.

2021 Supply Distribution

Through the COVID-19 Pandemic, Emergency Management continues to provide supplies to the 
community.  Below are approximated numbers of what Emergency Management has provided to the 
community in 2021, this does not include state resources that were sent directly to facilities:

Masks- 480,000
Gloves- 900,000
Gowns- 24,000
Sharps Containers- 400 
Bandaids- 22,000
Ventilators- 20 
COVID test kits- 3,000
Shoe Covers- 25,000 

2021 Major Events

These are some of the major events Emergency Management was involved with.  These events all took a 
lot of time both inside and outside normal business hours.

February 15- Rolling Blackouts
March 2- Maple Grove/Jordan Springs large fire
March 9- COVID Declaration
March 12- High wind event with damage to signs and power poles
March 28- Beer & Ice Wildfires with disaster declaration
May 31- localized flooding 
June 25- severe weather-power poles and outbuildings damaged.  EF-0 tornado near Turon
September 9-COVID Declaration
December 10- Wildfire Declaration for fire near Arlington and K-14
December 15- High winds, multiple wildfires



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.B

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Captain Shawn McClay

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Raise in Reimbursement cost to house State Parole Violators.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Kansas Department of Corrections recently sent us a letter requesting that we set our daily billable
rate for parole violators. The letter was sent out on January 27, 2022. I have attached the letter for
review.
 
K.S.A 19-1930 directs the Secretary of Corrections to pay the cost of maintaining a parole violator held
under the authority of K.S.A. 75-5217 (Parole Violation) for the completion of revocation proceedings.
Currently, the Kansas Department of Corrections reimburses Reno County $53.00 per day to hold
Parole Violators. This rate has not changed since 2009. We are asking that this number be set at $62.00
per day, per parole violator. This rate change is due to budget increases in salary budget, along with
other increases in the necessities of operating a jail. The maximum billable per diem rate set by KDOC
is $94.29

ALL OPTIONS:
Increase billable per diem rate to $62.00
 
Leave billable per diem rate at $53.00

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Set per diem daily reimbursement rate for the Kansas Department of Corrections at $62.00

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
I would estimate we have a monthly rate of 45-50 billable days per month to the Kansas Department of
Corrections. This would mean an approximate $444.00 monthly increase received from KDOC.





AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.C

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Reno County Advisory Board/Committee Guidelines

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Consent to the use of the attached administrative guidelines for county board application process.



RENO COUNTY BOARD APPOINTMENT
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESS

Reno County government includes several boards to assist and guide various departments. Some of these 
Boards have specific criteria for membership while others are open to any volunteers. It is important that 
these boards consist of Reno County residents with diverse perspectives and backgrounds in order to 
represent the broad interests of people living in Reno County. To further this goal, any county affiliated 
board with a vacancy shall arrange to post notice of the vacancy and an application for the Board position 
to the County’s website and social media at least 90 days prior to filling the vacancy. All applications shall 
be made available to the Board of Commissioner’s for review prior to an appointment being made.



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.A

AGENDA DATE: February 22, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Monthly Department Reports

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Every month, departments have been asked to provide an update on the previous month's major
activities.  The reports are intended to keep the county commission informed about the appointed and
elected departments.  Attached are reports for Health Dept., Human Resources, Information
Technology, Maintenance, Public Works, Solid Waste, Treasurer and Youth Services.

ALL OPTIONS:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Discussion Only

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
n/a



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RE:  Monthly report ending January 2022 

 

Dear Randy Partington, County Administrator: 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

Current vacancies include a Health Information Management Supervisor, Women Infant 

Children (WIC) Dietitian and two Public Health Nurses.  

 

Financial summary 

Staff are completing grant reporting requirements to prepare for our new grant cycles.  

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Covid-19 Update. Active Cases 14-day PTR # of residents with at least 1 dose 

Last month:  396  17.0%  52.40% 

This month:  1,343  45.4%  53.59%  

 

COVID-19 Vaccinations: In house PODS  Daily POD Offsite   

Total by RCHD: 23,603 5,353  10,477  4,542  3,231 

 

Vaccine Administration.  During the month of January, CDC and KDHE authorized booster 

vaccines for 12- to 15-year-olds, and updated the COVID-19 isolation and quarantine guidelines. 

We continued to have many offsite flu and Covid-19 vaccine administration events, along with 

daily vaccine administration at the health department.    

 

Clinical – Basic Health Services (BHS), Maternal Child Health (MCH), Family Practice (FP), 

Older Adult Services (OAS), and Epidemiology.  Annual statistics include, in house 

immunizations were down from 2020, offsite immunizations were up from 2020, Basic Health 

Services (BHS) were down from 2020, however, Maternal Child Health (MCH) was up from 

2020.  In December, we passed, without any deficiencies, our periodic laboratory inspection, our 

Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments (CLIA) survey. 

 

WIC – Women, Infant & Children. Breastfeeding Peer Counselors held 2 events with 9 

participants. For 2021, 923 active clients (have used at least 1 item on food benefits) out of 1154 

participating (received benefits). 

 

Health Education – Chronic Disease and Risk Reduction (CDRR), Opioid Overdose to Action 

(OD2A), Rural Response to the Opioid Epidemic (RROE), Pathways to a Healthy Kansas, and 

Community Education. CDRR-Staff presented at many community organizations regarding 

tobacco cessation programs and assisted with the Food Policy Advisory Board. OD2A-Staff 

continue to work with our IT department on a Reno Recovery website.  RROE-Staff spoke on 

the radio about the drug trends report. Pathways-Staff is working with the Farmers Market on 

209 West 2nd Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5232 

(620) 694-2900 

Fax (620) 694-2901 

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 800-766-3777 

www.renogov.org/health 

http://www.renogov.org/health


 

their strategic plan.  Health Education staff focus on policies, systems, and environmental 

strategies designed to address health equity and improve the social determinants of health for 

Reno County residents.  

 

Environmental Health (EH).  Staff are still meeting with IT for the best way to have PDF forms 

available for the public on the beacon website to allow the public to conduct property research.  

Staff saw a slight decrease in site request for well, wastewater, and mortgage inspections.      

 

Licensed Child Care (LCC).  During the month, staff provided an Orientation class via zoom, 

maintained annual and compliance surveys, conducted initial surveys, saw a slight increase in 

complaints of illegal care, and consulted with a school district regarding opening an after-school 

program.  Staff are partnering with KCCTO to offer an all-day training event for Reno and 

Harvey County providers and centers on January 29th.  

 

Electronic Health Record (EHR).  During the month, we had our kick-off call with CureMD 

regarding our EHR implementation.  We are currently in the Discovery Phase of the project; we 

are completing basic information so our database can be set up and basic information complied.      

  

 

Upcoming Projects 

 

Community Health Assessment (CHA). As follow up to the discussion by the Board of County 

Commissioner’s Strategic Plan, the Health Department, in cooperation with the Hutchinson 

Regional Healthcare System, will be conducting our CHA in April.  Childcare and Housing are 

two issues that will be addressed with the upcoming CHA.   

 

National Association of Counties (NACo).  NACo will be hosting a webinar on March 30th on 

Strategies in Jail Reentry for People with Substance Use Disorder Part 3: Sharing and Using 

Data.  Health Department staff will be presenting at the webinar regarding the data dashboard 

(ODMAP) and how we are using this information to aide in responses/outreach. You can 

registered for the event at: https://www.naco.org/events/jail-reentry-people-substance-use-

disorders-part-3-sharing-and-using-data.    

 

 

Sincerely,  

Karla Nichols 

Director of Public Health 

https://www.naco.org/events/jail-reentry-people-substance-use-disorders-part-3-sharing-and-using-data
https://www.naco.org/events/jail-reentry-people-substance-use-disorders-part-3-sharing-and-using-data


                                                                                               
           RENO COUNTY 
                                                                                       206 West First Ave. 
                              Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 

                                                                          PHONE: (620) 694-2982 
  FAX: (620) 694-2508 

 
 

Board of Commissioners - Department Update 

Human Resources – January 2022 
Helen Foster – Human Resources Director 

 
Position Openings 
We currently have 21 job openings.  For the month of January, we have had eight (8) separations and gained four 
(4) new employees. Submitted applications received for open positions was up this month to 60 applications 
completed through January 30th.  The average daily views for the month of January was 312.  This is still an 
increase of traffic to our website compared to the early months through the summer of last year.  Traffic seemed to 
start showing in increase in mid-October and has continued to stay steady. 
 
2021 Service Awards  
Staff reported that the Service Awards Ceremony went very well.  I want to express a special Thank You to all that 
attended and thank each of the Commissioners for their support at the Ceremony.  It means so much to all the staff 
for each of them to take time out to appreciate the employees of Reno County! I appreciate their attendance! 
 
New Carriers 
We now have a designated account representative for our group.  I am in hopes that the upcoming month will show 
progress and improvements in the service to our employees.  Most of the disruption now is all due to the RX 
vendor and the medical vendor’s systems not communicating efficiently.  Employees are still receiving their 
prescriptions, but it does come with additional effort and frustration on their part.  I can report that most disruptions 
are resolved within a few hours of notifying the vendor.   
 
With the problems in communication, there have been many employees reporting that deductibles are met and 
they are still paying for meds at the pharmacy.  BML started an audit last week of all employee accounts to make 
sure that each member is being reviewed and their portals are updated to show accurate deductible information 
with RX and medical costs. 
 
Wage Study 
All departments have received the Salary Adjustment Information for employees and payroll has reported that they 
are prepared for the change.  Payroll will begin building the new pay scales and moving employees to the adjusted 
rates starting on February 7th to prepare for the payroll on February 18th. 
 
End of the Year 
The IRS has extended the deadline for providing the 1095’s to employees this year to March 2nd.   They reported 
last year that they would not extend the deadline for this past the 31st of January going forward but have now 
permanently moved the deadline to March 2nd or the first business day following the date of March 2nd for all future 
years.  The transmission file will be due to the IRS on March 31st.  I will plan to have these to employees within the 
next couple of weeks and the transmission done by the end of February.  
 
Unemployment Fraud 
Unfortunately, I must report that we have seen 2 fraudulent unemployment claims filed this week.  The state is 
looking into this issue and many employers are getting hit hard with fraudulent claims again.  My hope is that it 
does not become out of hand like last year, but one employer has reported to me that they are seeing fraudulent 
claims very close to the intensity that they did last year.   

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

February 2, 2022 

 
           Monthly Report Information Services 

           Michael Mathews 

 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

We have filled both open positions, Helpdesk Technician started this week and is in training and getting acclimated to 

our environment. The Document Management Specialist will start on 2/14 and we hope to have him hit the ground 

running. 

Budget YTD summary 

IT always has a lot of large expenditures at the first of the year as we must pay many of out software support contracts. 

We work diligently to remain within our adopted budget. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

We have completed the Multi factor authentication project with little trouble. We are now working on a number of 

other projects; we are still working on the time keeping project with the Clerk’s office and the Health department. I 

hoping to start testing with a department soon. We are also reconfiguring our entire domain this project will take 

several months to complete. We are also moving our Office 365 licensing to include Teams and SharePoint for all users 

and departments. We will begin training the departments and helping them learn to use it to communicate better. We 

will be receiving the scanning equipment for the document management project and will be working with the Register 

of Deeds first. 

Issues that we dealt with the past month include. We had a few challenges this month mostly from being short handed 

by a staff member.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RENO COUNTY 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2523 

Fax: 620-694-2954 



         

  

 

 

Maintenance & Purchasing Monthly Report  2/1/2022 

Harlen Depew, Director 

Staffing:  Maintenance has one unfilled position for a Custodial Tech position and one daytime Maintenance Tech 

I.  We have noticed an uptick in applications since the new wages have been published! 

Budget YTD summary 

We will report on the final numbers from  FY 2021 once the remaining few invoices from last year have been 

processed, but we will be under budget for the year. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

We continue to work with Departments and the County Administrator in the development of the courthouse space 

study. 

Courthouse Project:  Since the contractor’s report at the Commission Meeting on January 25, 2022, additional 

concerns have been identified regarding the condition of the concrete substrate which the limestone slabs rest on 

at the uppermost part of the dome.  A structural engineer from our insurance company is scheduled to be on-site 

the week of February 6 to visually inspect this and to consult with the contractor and architect before making a 

final decision on how to best resolve this condition.  The insurance rep will also be reviewing the additional work 

required to replace deteriorated ties anchoring the stone facade to the exterior of the building. 

The week of January 9, I was honored to be one of four Reno County leaders selected to attend a six day class at 

the University of Kansas Public Management Center.  The focus of the class was creating a culture of high 

performance.   It was an intense week, but we all left feeling positive and optimistic about the future of our Reno 

County organization.  Thanks to the Commissioners and County Administrator, Randy Partington for their support 

of this initiative. 

We are seeing  dramatic increases in the cost of parts, materials, and office supplies thru our Purchasing division 

over the past few months.   Jennifer Lobban and Matt Elliott are both working hard to find the best value / pricing 

for all departments on a daily basis.  Hopefully these increases will stabilize sooner than later! 

On behalf of all the employees in this department, I want to express our gratitude to the Board of County 

Commissioners for the full implementation of the recent wage study.  Getting our positions adjusted to market 

rates, and addressing the compression issues was a big commitment, but the positive impact on our employees is 

significant, and greatly appreciated. 

  

 

 



 

Don Brittain 

Public Works Director 

 

Road & Bridge • Planning & Zoning • Noxious Weed • Utilities 

 
                                                                                                   

  

J a n u a r y  2022 Monthly Report 

 

 Equipment 

 

Sending out bids for equipment budgeted for 2022. 

 

Projects 

 

Asphalt Crew is now shouldering the edge of the roadways.  

 

Mowing/Sign is trimming trees throughout the County and repairing signs as needed. 

 

Dirt Crew will start replacing culverts under roadways scheduled for the 2022 overlay season and cleaning 

ditches throughout the County.  

 

Bridge Crew is building the Nickerson Blvd. bridge 20.65, 1.5 miles north of K-96. 

 

Planning & Zoning working on two rezones, one cup, one special exception, and working on getting wind 

regulations official.  

 

Contracted Projects 

 

Willowbrook Bridge construction will begin this summer and the bridge is the Counties responsibility. 

Railroad decided to make an addition inspection on the 43rd Rd. bridge and we are waiting on the final 

result and billing. 

Construction on the Arlington Rd. bridge within the Arlington city limits is going well. 

Construction on the Arlington Rd. bridge 8 miles east of the City of Arlington is going well. 

Scott Blvd. located in South Hutch bridge has went out for bid. 

 

Challenges  

 

Working on how to pay for rehabilitating Sewer District 201 Yoder and Sewer District 202 Habit.  

Working on Water District 101 Yoder high nitrate problem. My have found property to drill on. Now 

working with property owner and KDHE. 

Short 3 full time positions, new wage scale has helped in recruiting employees. 

Receiving new equipment within the fiscal year it was ordered. There will need to be a discussion with the 

Administrator on how to resolve this issue. 

Need to consider and start the process of transitioning the ownership and maintenance of Water and Sewer 

Districts 8 to the city of The Highlands.  

 

   

Public Works 

600 Scott Boulevard 

South Hutchinson, Kansas 67505 

620-694-2976 

Don Brittain, Director 

 



                           Reno County Solid Waste  
                                                                                 703 S. Mohawk 
                                                                                 Hutchinson, KS 67501 
              (620) 694-2586 
              Fax (620) 694-669-8126 

 

 
 

Solid Waste Monthly Update January 2022 
Megan Davidson, Director 

 

Staffing: We are currently at full staff at the landfill as this time with 23 
employees!! 
 
 Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: The new facilities are coming along nicely 
and an expected opening date will be happening sometime in the month of 
February.  There has been some delays in products on delivery times that we have 
been waiting on.  
 
The month of January has been nothing but everyday tasks of accepting trash, but 
also trying to keep up with the ever changing wind directions and keeping blowing 
litter picked up outside of the fences. This has been our top priority, but again 
with employees out sick or on vacation seems like we get a good day of picking 
then we do not have enough staff with other projects we also have going on. We 
are getting as much done as we can and will continue to work until it is all caught 
up. The new road from the new entrance has been completed and is ready for 
operation once we get moved into the new facilities. We were able to build the 
new road with the crushed concrete that we have on our concrete pile that we 
had crushed last summer which did save the county money using our own 
materials. The next couple of projects at hand will be finishing up Cell 8 to get 
ready to go out for bid and also help with the construction of the new Sherriff gun 
range south of the landfill. 
 
Office staff has been busy tying up loose ends from the 2021 year and also 
gearing up for moving into the new facilities ordering in supplies and making sure 
everything is ready to go once we get all moved over.  
 
Budget: We are still getting in some invoices from the 2021 budget year. New 
equipment purchases for 2022 will start coming in for approval once all of the 
information has been received from vendors.  



 

www.renogov.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

January 26, 2022 

 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 

 
 

STAFFING CHANGES OR ISSUES:   

 

We will be listing the two tag clerk positions that have been vacant and will also be listing the 

opening for a fiscal associate 1 for the treasury department unless we promote from within our 

department. The push for collecting the 1st half taxes levied has subsided with us showing a 

collection rate of  approximately 59.00%. 

 

We now have to concentrate on the Tax Sale preparations, Annual City Reports, Form 138 for 

the school districts, bond payments on top of our usual daily duties.  We are also in the renewal 

period for commercial trucks (Fleets), heavy trucks and trailers. 

 

 

BUDGET YTD SUMMARY: 

 

Overall expenses for the year 2021 were at 93%.   

 

 

PROJECTS/ISSUES/CHALLENGES/CONCERNS: 

 

Percent of taxes collected went from 53% to 58.68% in 2021. Remember the 2nd half of 2021 

taxes are not due until 5-10-22 but we continue to collect more taxes every day. We are also 

starting to work on the tax sale properties for 2022. We are now working on the renewal of 

commercial fleets, trailers and heavy trucks.   Last, but not least, we are handling year end duties. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

RENO COUNTY TREASURER 
125 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2938 

Fax: 620-694-2776 
T

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 



  

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Youth Services Monthly Report 

January 2022 

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

We’re currently seeking to fill the stand-by Youth Care Specialist/Juvenile Detention Officer, 40-hour 

female only Juvenile Corrections Officer, a 40-hour male only Youth Care Staff, and a 20-hour Youth 

Care Specialist.  All positions, except standby positions, offers insurance benefits and KPERS.  

Those interested in the open positions can apply online at Renogov.org.   

The employee of the month for January is Cindy Cook.  Cindy joined Youth Services in 1989.  She 

started out as a part time detention worker quickly moving into a full-time position.  Cindy has spent 

her whole employment as a detention officer.   She is a wealth of information with her 32 years of 

experience and has developed a unique style of working with an array of individuals.  Cindy is 

creative and consistent when dealing with youth, continually motivating them to work the program.  

She is often the first to help covering open hours and has rearranged her work schedule frequently.  

Cindy is an incredible asset to Youth Services, and we are so very lucky to have her as one of our 

veteran employees. 

Budget YTD Summary 

As of 1/21/2022, we have spent 5% of our Shelter budget (Dept.90).  The expenses are routine and are mostly 

due to salaries.  The total shelter budget is $1,151,760.  We have spent 6% of our detention budget (Dept.91).  

Detention expenditures consists of mostly salaries. The total detention budget is $1,036,265.   

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Shelter youth returned to public school after their long Christmas break and was ready to return to the 

classroom.  Mid-January we had a few youth and staff test positive for Covid-19 and all recovered 

well.  We currently have no youth or staff who have an active case of Covid.  We continue to wear 

mask and sanitize the facility throughout the day and during evening hours.   

At the end of the month, we held an open house for RNSO and HPD officers to provide an 

opportunity for our residents to personally thank them for their generous Christmas donation.   Law 
enforcement officers joined youth playing board games, cards, ping pong and conversation. It was 

well received by all those who participated.   

We had a detention juvenile complete his high school requirements earlier this month.  He worked 

online, with the assistants of the in house USD 308 school teachers, to earn his high school diploma.    

RENO COUNTY YOUTH SERVICES 
219 West Second Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas  67501 
(620) 694-2500 

Fax:  (620) 694-2504 
TDD:  Kansas Relay Center  1-800-766-3777 

JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER 

JUVENILE INTAKE & ASSESSMENT 

BOB JOHNSON YOUTH SHELTER 

 


	02-22-2022 AGENDA.pdf (p.1-2)
	06.B Minutes.pdf (p.3-14)
	Reno-97-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-97-2022 - Jan 25th minutes.pdf
	Reno-97-2022 - Feb 8th minutes.pdf

	06.C Resolution Cancel Warrants.pdf (p.15-19)
	Reno-96-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-96-2022 - Resolution_for_County_Warrants_2022.pdf

	06.D AuditAgree.pdf (p.20-29)
	Reno-31-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-31-2022 - 2-10-22 Reno Adams Brown engagement letter update.pdf

	06.E IdeaTekAgree.pdf (p.30-38)
	Reno-99-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-99-2022 - Reno County Fiber Lease Agreement.pdf

	06.F NoxWeedPlan.pdf (p.39-46)
	Reno-59-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-59-2022 - Noxious Weed Eradication Progress Report 2021

	06.G StratacaLoS.pdf (p.47-54)
	Reno-98-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-98-2022 - Strataca-LtrSupportReq.pdf

	06.H LandfillWindFence.pdf (p.55-63)
	Reno-106-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-106-2022 - Mobile Wind Fence Agenda 2-22-22.pdf

	06.I DeclarationOriginal.pdf (p.64-65)
	Reno-95-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-95-2022 - 2022 2 8  DECLARATION proclamation  wildfire.doc

	06.J DeclarationExtended.pdf (p.66-68)
	Reno-105-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-105-2022 - 2022 2 16  DECLARATION proclamation  wildfire (003).doc

	07.A Emerg Mgmt Annual Update.pdf (p.69-76)
	Reno-104-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-104-2022 - Commission 2022 Yearly Report EM.doc

	07.B RCCF Per Diem.pdf (p.77-78)
	Reno-103-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-103-2022 - Per Diem Rate.pdf

	07.C BoardCmteGuidelines.pdf (p.79-80)
	Reno-100-2022 - Cover Page
	Reno-100-2022 - Board applicant process.docx

	08.A Dept Reports.pdf (p.81-90)
	Reno-207-2021 - Cover Page
	Reno-207-2021 - DeptReports.pdf


